NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 0 76 =
WESTERN DIVISION “Gn.

In re: -

WILLIAM JEFFERY KARLOVIC Case No. 01-74328
BETH ELENI KARLOVIC

Debtors.
Judge Manuel Barbosa

IRA BODENSTEIN,
United States Trustee,

s Plaintiff, 0:1%5#[3? 0 0 6

TAUHIDAH F. EL-AMIN,
Defendant.

COMPLAINT AGAINST PETITION PREPARER
FOR INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER RELIEF

NOW COMES IRA BODENSTEIN, the United States Trustee for the Northern
District oflllinoi.s, by his attorney, Thomas P. Walz, and respectiully requests that this Court
enter an order pursuant to §110()(2)(B) of the Bankruptcy Code permanently enjoining
Tauhidah F. El-Armin, d/b/a Amicus Curiae Paralegal Services, from preparing bankruptcy
petitions, and for other relief. In support thereof, the U.S. Trustee aileges and states as
follows:

PARTIES, JURISDICTION AND VENUE
1. The Piaintiff, Ira Bodenstein, is the United States Trustee for the Northern

District of llinois.
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2. The Defendant, Tauhidah F. EI-Amin, is an individual who conducts business
as a bankruptcy petition preparer using the tradename “Amit_:us Curiae Paralegal Services.”
Ms. El-Amin maintains an office at 540 15 th Avenue, Rockford, Hlinois, within this district.

3, The U.S8. Trustee has standing to bring this complaint pursuant to Sections 110
and 307 of the Bankruptcy Code.

4, The Court has jurisdiction over this adversary proceeding pursuant to 23
U.S.C. §§157. 1334 and 11 U.8.C.§110()(1).

5. This is a core proceeding pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §157(b)}2)A).

6. Venue in this Court is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1409(a), 11 U.S.C.
§110(j)(1) and Local Rule 2.33 of the United States District Court for the Northern District
of lilinois.

BACKGROUND FACTS

7. The Defendant, Ms. El-Amin, formerly conducted business as a paralegal in
California. She has relocated to Rockford and opened a business known as "Amicus
Curiae Paralegal Services.” A recent article from a local newspaper describing Ms. El-
Amin's business is attached as Exhibit A. A copy of the web site formerly hosted by Ms.
El-Amin is attached as Exhibit B.

8. In llinois, a “paralegal” may not offer or provide legal Services to the public
unless the individual is employed by, and operating under the direct supervision of, a
licensed attorney. Ms. El-Amin is not supervised by an attorney.

9 Ms. El-Amin is a bankruptcy petition preparer, as that phrase is defined in
Section 110 of the Bankruptcy Code.

10. In 2001, Ms. El-Amin prepared Chapter 13 bankruptcy papers for Herman V.
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Harris, Case No. 01 B 70275, and Chapter 7 bankruptcy papers for Raymond and Alversia
Tolefree, Case No. 01 B 71030. Each of these debtaors paid Ms. El-Amin $250 to prepare
bankruptcy documents, plus the filing fee.

11. After these two cases were filed, the U.S. Trustee became aware of Ms. El-
Amin’s activities, and discussed them with her informally. Ms. EI-Amin submitted to the
U.S. Trustee copies of the workbook she uses to prepare bankruptcy documents, which
is attached as Exhibit C.

12. On May 29, 2001, the U.S. Trustee sent a letter to Ms. EI-Amin which stated the
U.S. Trustee's position regarding her paralegal business, and included copies of Section
110 of the Bankruptcy Code, and the lllinois statute regarding the unauthorized practice
of law. A copy of that letter is attached as Exhibit D,

13. In November of 2001, Ms. El-Amin prepared Chapter 7 bankruptcy papers for
Carolyn Weathers and received $250.

THE KARLOVIC CASE

14, On Qctober 29, 2001, William and Beth Karlovic (the Debtors) commenced this
voluntary Chapter 7 case. Ms. EI-Amin prepared the Debtors' bankruptcy documents for
$250.

15. The Debtors state that they met with Ms. EI-Amin at her office and received a
pack of documents from her. The Debtors filled out a questionnaire, and gave Ms. El-Amin
a copy of their credit report. She then prepared their schedules and statement of financial
affairs.

16. The Debtors complain that Ms. El-Amin didn't explain anything to them, and

wouldn’t answer any of their questions. However, Ms. EI-Amin did convince the Debtors
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ta value their furniture at $5,000 and clothing at $3,000, rather than the much iower figures
indicated by the Debtors, and convinced them to value their wedding rings at their cost of
$3,000, rather than their current resale value.

17. The Schedule B prepared by Ms. El-Amin does notlist an all-terrain vehicle that
the Debtars disclosed at their creditor meeting. The Debtors’ Chapter 7 trustee may take
and liquidate this vehicle.

18. The Schedule F prepared by Ms. EI-Amin listed the names of various creditors,
which were gathered from the Debtors’ credit report, but does not list addresses for these
creditors. Some of the addresses also were not listed on the creditor matrix, resulting in
the creditors not receiving notice of the bankruptcy. At the Debtors’ creditor meeting, the
trustee indicated the Debtors had to provide addresses for all of their creditors. The
Debtors went directly from the creditor meeting to Ms. EI-Amin’s office to discuss this
problem, and Ms. El-Amin allegedly told the Debtors their failure to provide creditor
addresses was “No big deal.”

19. During the Debtor's first meeting with Ms. EI-Amin, Mr. Karlovic indicated that
he didn't think his student loans were dischargeable, and suggested that they not be listed
on the schedules. Ms. El-Amin agreed to leave the student loans off the schedules. After
his creditor meeting, Mr. Karlovic decided he ought to list the student loans to see if they
would in fact be discharged. Ms. El-Amin then listed the student loan creditors on an
amended Schedule F, but did not provide addresses for the creditors.

20. The Debtors gave Ms. El-Amin $200 in cash for their filing fee. Ms. EI-Amin
apparently converted the funds to a check payable to the clerk of bankruptey court, and
sent it to the court along with the Debtors bankruptcy papers.
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21. To her credit, Ms. El-Amin did disclose her name, address and social security
number on the Debtors’ petition. However, she did not file a “Certification and Signature
of Non-Attorney Bankruptcy Petition Preparer” form; did not file a "Disclosure of
Compensation of Bankruptcy Petition Preparer” form; and did not disclose her
compensation in response to Question 9 of the Statement of Financial Affairs.

22. Ms. EI-Amin has engaged in the unauthorized practice of law, and has engaged
in conduct which is deceptive, unfair or otherwise contrary to Section 110 of the Bankruptcy
Code.

REQUESTED RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the U.S. Trustee respectfully requests that this Court enter an order:

1. Finding that Ms. El-Amin is a bankruptey petition preparer, and has violated
Section 110 of the Bankruptcy Code by using the word “Paralegal” in her advertising, by
collecting filing fees from debters, by practicing law without a license and by engaging in
other conduct which is fraudulent, unfair or deceptive.

2. Finding that Ms. EI-Amin has continually engaged in the unauthorized practice
of law and other fraudulent, unfair or deceptive conduct in violation of Section 110 of the
Bankruptcy Code, and that an injunction prohibiting further violations will not be sufficient
to prevent her interference with the proper administration of Title 11 of the United States
Code;

3. Pursuant to §110(j)(2)(A) of the Bankruptcy Code, permanently enjoining Ms. El-
Amin, and any other person or entity acting under her direction or control, from collecting
filing fees, using the word “Paralegal” or “Legal” or any similar term in any advertising,
engaging in the unauthorized practice of law or otherwise violating Section 110 of the
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